REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 27 September 2007, in the Town Hall, Royal Leamington Spa at 2.30 pm.

PRESENT: Councillors; Mrs Mellor (Chairman); Councillors Barrott, Crowther, Gallagher, Mrs Goode, Grainger, Harris and Mobbs.

(Councillor Barrott acted as substitute for Councillor Gill).

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Mrs Falp.

473. **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST**

There were no declarations of interest.

474. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 30 July 2007 were taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

475. **ELECTION PILOT 3 MAY 2007**

The Committee considered a report from Members' Services on an evaluation of the elections pilot held on 3 May 2007.

Elections for the District, Town and Parish Councils were held on Thursday 3 May 2007. After close of nominations on 4 April, 2007, 46 District Seats had been contested, plus four Parishes (Barford, Bishops Tachbrook, Budbrooke and Weston-under-Wetherley) and all seats on the four Town Councils.

In 2006, Warwick District Council approached Stratford District Council to run a joint pilot in May 2007. The original application submitted in November 2006 was to have early internet voting, early vote anywhere (ie the elector was able to vote at any polling station), vote anywhere on polling day and to have all votes electronically counted. The former Department of Constitutional Affairs (DCA), now known as the Ministry of Justice (MoJ) agreed that both Councils could run a joint pilot but with an electronic count over two joint counting centres, with the centralisation of the management of postal votes.

The Secretary of State announced to Parliament in January 2007 that the Councils would be running a joint pilot with Warwick as the lead authority. This announcement was made much later than the original date which was due to be early December and the Order for the election was finally signed on 26 March 2007.

The Order allowed the councils to use two count centres. The majority of WDC wards would be counted in the Town Hall, Leamington Spa apart from the Lapworth and Leek Wootton wards being counted in Stratford. The Stratford wards of Fenny Compton, Southam and Stockton and Napton would be counted in Leamington Spa. The Order also allowed all postal votes to be opened in one place to save on costs and it was decided this would be carried out in the Town Hall, Leamington Spa.

At the request of the former DCA, Software AG (with their Canadian subcontractors, Dominion Voting Systems) were chosen by the MoJ to run the electronic counting process and Opt2Vote to print the specialised ballots and run the managed service for signature and date of birth checking for postal votes at the joint postal vote openings.

The Electoral Services Manager also gave details of the evaluation undertaken by the MoJ, which included Planning, Publicity, Staffing and Training, Political Agents, Poll Cards, Absent Voting, Fraud Investigation, Royal Mail, Collection of ballot boxes, Polling day, Counts, Feedback comments received and the Election Turnouts.

On consideration of the report the Committee made some minor amendments to the recommendations that were set out in the report.

RESOLVED that the Ministry of Justice be informed of the Council's views that

- in future, Election Pilot Orders be drawn up much earlier and with more consultation with pilot authorities and contractors;
- (2) authorities involved in submitting a joint bid for an elections pilot do so with their chosen supplier;
- (3) time be allowed to run a 'test' election so that issues such as the adjudication of doubtful ballots be resolved before live data is used;
- (4) contractors be able to prove that they can deliver a pilot and have not overstretched themselves;
- (5) the Ministry of Justice (MoJ) specify in advance as to what auditing procedures they required from authorities;
- (6) contractors would be required to attend all project board meetings;
- (7) when employing contractors from outside the UK, the MoJ ensure that they are aware of the pressure of the legislative timetable and be knowledgeable about how elections are conducted in the UK;
- (8) when piloting electronic counting the correct quality of paper be used and thoroughly tested; and
- (9) the closing date for applications for inclusion on the electoral register and for postal votes be separated.

476. POLLING STATION REVIEW

The Committee considered a report from Members' Services on a review of the Polling District, Polling Places and Polling Stations, in connection with parliamentary elections.

In accordance with the requirements of section 18C(1) of the Representation of the People Act 1983, the Electoral Services Manager had undertaken a review of polling districts and polling places for use in connection with parliamentary elections held within the Warwick and Learnington and Rugby and Kenilworth (where applicable) parliamentary constituencies.

Any recommendations made in the review would be completed in time to enable the Electoral Registration Officer to make any alterations necessary to the register of electors when it was next fully revised by 1 December 2007.

Representations had been sought by the Returning Officers for the two parliamentary constituencies and from persons who were considered to have particular expertise in relation to access to premises or facilities for persons who have different forms of disability.

In addition, electors registered in the Warwick District Council area had been invited to make representations to the Electoral Services Office.

Details of the existing electoral arrangements were made available for inspection at Riverside House, and representations of changes had been requested by 14 September 2007.

RECOMMENDED that the schedule of polling districts and polling places, as detailed in Appendix B to the Minutes, be approved, for use in connection with parliamentary elections held within the Warwick and Leamington and Rugby and Kenilworth (where applicable) parliamentary constituencies.

477. PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED that under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following items by reason of the likely disclosure of exempt information within the paragraph 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, following the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006.

478. HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE LICENCE APPLICATION

The applicant, ARP, had informed Members' Services the day before the meeting that he could not now attend the meeting and therefore this item was withdrawn from the agenda, for consideration at a future meeting.

479. HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE LICENCE APPLICATION

The Committee considered a report from Members' Services on an application for a driver's licence from a person who had recently committed offences.

MS applied for a hackney carriage/private hire driving licence on 3 July 2007. On the application form, the applicant declared convictions for various offences of a serious nature. These had been confirmed by the Criminal Records Bureau (CRB) statement. MS submitted a letter with his application explaining that he had a number of convictions. These were detailed in Appendix 1 to the report.

Due to the nearness of the next Regulatory Committee meeting, the applicant was told verbally of the officer's intention to invite him to attend the next meeting in order for him to try to convince the Committee that he was a fit and proper person to hold a hackney carriage/private hire licence, despite his convictions.

The Councils general guide when dealing with convictions was attached as an appendix to the report.

Copies of the CRB disclosure were distributed at the meeting.

MS addressed the Committee and outlined his supporting statement, copies of which were provided for each member of the Committee.

MS left the meeting of his own choice following questioning from the Committee and the Council's Legal Officer.

RESOLVED that the application by MS for a Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers Licence not be accepted.

Councillor Harris left the meeting after this item.

The Committee then lifted the restriction of Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972.

480. EXTENDING STREET CONSENTS

The Committee considered a report from Members' Services regarding the designation of all streets within Warwick District Council's area as consent streets with added conditions.

The Council was permitted to make a decision to make streets 'consent streets' under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. That meant that anyone who exposed goods for sale on a designated street would need a street trading consent. A street was defined in the Act as "any road, footway, beach or other area to which the public have access without payment".

The current streets that were designated consent streets were limited to certain streets in the centre of Royal Leamington Spa. No other parts of the district had restrictions at present.

There was now a general proliferation of cars being sold at the roadside as well as burger and fast food sellers throughout the District. Making all streets consent

streets ensured that all such operators would have to submit an application to the Council to enable them to continue trading.

The Committee may add conditions or refuse consent applications, or revoke an existing consent if it sees fit in the circumstances. Provided that the Council operates fairly and in the general good, there was no appeal to conditions or refusal.

The proposal to make all streets in the District into consent streets was advertised in the Observer on 9 August 2007 and the statutory 28 days for representations had ended. No representations were received.

If the Committee approved the consent streets, two further advertisements would have to be arranged on consecutive weeks with the implementation date being 28 days from the first advertisement.

RESOLVED that

- all streets within Warwick District be approved as consent streets, including the conditions, as detailed in appendix 2, to the report; and
- (2) one months grace be permitted from the date of introduction before enforcement action is taken against traders breeching the regulations.

481. DEREGULATION OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE ZONES

The Committee considered a report from Members' Services on the merging of the four current hackney carriage zones into one zone.

Prior to 1974, hackney carriages had been licensed by the former Boroughs of Leamington Spa and Warwick and the Urban District Council of Kenilworth.

The District Council had decided to keep the separate areas, (zones), when the Councils amalgamated to form Warwick District Council. The decision had been made because it was felt that if the zones were removed all taxis would concentrate on Leamington Spa and there would be no service for Kenilworth or Warwick.

The Transport Act 1985 extended hackney carriage licensing to all areas of the country. This meant that, for the first time, the area of the former Warwick Rural District Council was covered by the Hackney Carriage Licensing regime. It was decided at that time that this should form a fourth zone.

Bylaws had been made by the Leamington and Warwick Borough Councils and the Kenilworth Urban District Council for the regulation of taxis, and these were still in force. It was not felt necessary to make bylaws for the Rural District as there were no ranks in the area and little demand for taxi licences.

The only reason the Council kept these zones in 1974 was because of the fear that all licensed vehicles would congregate in the most lucrative area of Leamington Spa. This argument has been eroded over the years mainly because of the increase in the number of private hire vehicles, and their

availability to provide a service for any part of the District. There also appeared to be sufficient trade in Warwick and Kenilworth to ensure that a taxi service was maintained in those towns. This view was supported by the fact that it was the Warwick proprietors who were objecting to the proposal as they felt that cars from all over the District would congregate in Warwick.

The Coventry Airport, the National Agricultural Centre, Stoneleigh and the Warwick Parkway Railway Station were all in the rural area. At present, there were only two taxis licensed for the rural area and if ranks were to be established at the airport and the railway station, the majority of licensed taxis for the district would not be able legally ply for hire from those areas.

At present, if a Leamington taxi took a fare to Kenilworth it was not allowed to wait in Kenilworth to attract a fare but must return empty to Leamington Spa. It was felt that it would be more environmentally friendly if vehicles from the three towns could ply for hire in each town, rather than having to return to the town for which they were presently licensed.

The deregulation was agreed in principle at a meeting of the Regulatory committee on 30 July 2007, and the necessary advertisements had now been complied with.

If that agreement in principle was now confirmed, the Secretary of State for Transport would be notified that the Council wished to apply Section 171(4) (ie amalgamate the zones). The effective date would be specified in the Secretary of State's approval.

RESOLVED that

- (1) the applications of the provisions of 171(4) of the Public Act 1875 be applied to the whole of Warwick District in relation to deregulation be approved; and
- (2) officers be authorised to give the required notice of the deregulation.

(The meeting ended at 5.05pm)

Minute number 476 – Appendix B

WARWICK AND LEAMINGTON CONSTITUENCY

BISHOPS TACHBROOK WARD - (current electorate 2005)

Polling District Letters	Polling Place	Roads within polling district
WNA	Station D (The Church) Warwick Gates Community Centre Cressida Close Warwick	Achilles Close, Bolingbroke Drive (1-27 odds), Calpurina Avenue, Cicero Approach, Dogberry Way, Eglamour Way (24-38 evens), Laertes Grove, Miranda Drive, Othello Avenue, Reignier Place, Shylock Grove, Touchstone Road, Trinculo Grove
WNB	Sports & Social Club The Playing Fields Kingsley Road Bishops Tachbrook	Village of Bishops Tachbrook
WNC (register to be amalgamated with WNA from next County Council elections 2009)	Station D (The Church) Warwick Gates Community Centre Cressida Close Warwick	Bolingbroke Drive (2-36 evens), Miranda Drive and Orsino Close.

BUDBROOKE WARD – (current electorate 4540)

Polling District		
Polling District Letters	Polling Place	Roads within polling district
WPA	Community Centre Barcheston Drive Hatton Park	Barcheston Drive, Barcheston Mews, Birmingham Road, Blackwell Lane, King Edwards Court, Brownley Green Lane, Campden Grove, Charingworth Drive, Claydon Grove, Combroke Grove, Crimscote Square, Dassett Close, Dorsington Close, Ebrington Drive, Halford Grove, Hatton Close, Hatton Hill (1 & 2-6), Highfield, Honington Close, Horton Grove, Ilmington Close, Mickleton Drive, Mollington Grove, Pebworth Drive, Quinton Close, Rowborough Close, Tidmington Close, Todenham Way, Tredington Park, Welford Grove, Winderton Avenue.
WPAA	Village Hall Hatton	Canal Lane, Hatton, Hatton Green, Hatton Hill, Hockley Road, Pinley Road, Starmer Place, Stoney Lane.
WPB	Parish Hall St Charles of Borromeo Hampton on the Hill	Birmingham Road (159-407 odds), Budbrooke, Grove Croft, Grove Park, Hampton Croft, Hampton Road, Hampton on the Hill, Hatton Terrace, Henley Road (5-17 & 18), Montgomery Avenue, Norton Lindsey Road, Old Budbrooke Road, Old School Lane.
WPBA (register to be amalgamated with WPB from next County Council elections 2009)	Parish Hall St Charles of Borromeo Hampton on the Hill	Hampton Road and Old Budbrooke Road.
WPC	Community Centre Field Barn Road Hampton Magna	The village of Hampton Magna
WPD	Village Hall Norton Lindsey	The parish of Norton Lindsey
WPE	Village Hall Sherbourne	The parish of Sherbourne
WPF	Memorial Hall Church Street Barford	The parish of Barford
WPG	Village Hall Wasperton	The parish of Wasperton

CUBBINGTON WARD – (current electorate 4442)

Polling District Letters	Polling Place	Roads within polling district
WRA	The Training Room Helen Ley Care Centre Bericote Lane Blackdown	The parish of Blackdown
WRB	Village Hall Lower End Bubbenhall	The parish of Bubbenhall
WRC	Station B Telford Junior School Telford Avenue Royal Leamington Spa	Balmoral Way, Beaufort Avenue, Dunblane Drive, Girvan Grove, High View Road, Kelvin Road (57-111 & 50-110), Kenilworth Road (1- 97 odds), Leicester Lane (94-132 evens), Lindop Close, Roxburgh Croft, Rugby Road, South View Road, Stirling Avenue, West Hill Road, West View Road.
WRD	Village Hall Broadway Cubbington	Austen Court, Boddington Close, Broadway, Church Lane, Church Terrace, Cotton Mill Spinney, Coventry Road, High Street (odds), Kenilworth Road (2-20 evens), Ledbrook Road, Leicester Lane, Pinehurst, Queen Street, Rugby Road, Stonehouse Close, Thorn Stile Close, Threecornered Close, Willow Sheets Meadow, Windmill Hill, Windmill Croft.
WRE	Chapel School Room Queen Street Cubbington	Brookfield Road, Chamberlain Close, Church Hill, Cross Lane, High Street (evens), Hillcrest, Knightley Close, Ladycroft, Mill Lane, New Street, North Close, Offchurch Road, Penns Close, Price Road, Queen Street, Rugby Road, The Grange, Welsh Road, Windmill Hill.
WRF	Village Hall Eathorpe	The parish of Eathorpe
WRG	Parish Room Old Milverton	The parish of Old Milverton
WRH	Village Hall Eathorpe	The parish of Wappenbury
WRI	Village Hall Sabin Drive Weston under Wetherley	The parish of Weston under Wetherley

LAPWORTH WARD – (current electorate – 2339)

Polling District Letters	Polling Place	Roads within polling district
WSA	Village Hall Chadwick End	The parish of Baddesley Clinton
WSB	Village Hall Old Warwick Road Lapworth	Bushwood, Bushwood Lane, Lapworth Street.
WSC	Village Hall	
WSD	Old Warwick Road	The parish of Lapworth
WSE	Lapworth	
WSF	Village Hall Rowington Green	Beech Close, Dicks Lane, Finwood Road, Haywood Lane, Mill Lane, Mousley End, Old Warwick Road (Rowington), Old Warwick Road (Lapworth), Old Warwick Road (Shrewley), Queens Drive, Rowington Green, St. Lawrence Close, The Avenue.
WSG	Village Hall Lowsonford	Back Lane, Giffard Terrace, High Cross, Holywell, Lapworth Street, Lye Green, Manor Lane, Mill Lane, Narrow Lane, Pinley, Pinley Green, Preston Road, Rookery Lane, Shrewley, Shrewley Common.

LEAMINGTON BRUNSWICK WARD – (current electorate 5526)

Polling District Letters	Polling Place	Roads within polling district
WAA	The Sports Hall Westbury Centre Westlea Road Royal Leamington Spa	Bury Road, Edinburgh Crescent, England Crescent, Flavel Crescent, Kennan Avenue, Kingsway, Lee Road, Linkway, Sargeaunt Street, Swadling Street, Tachbrook Road, Viscount Close, Westlea Road.
WAB	Kingsway Community Centre Edinburgh Crescent Royal Leamington Spa	Baker Avenue, Cashmore Avenue, Central Avenue, Elizabeth Road, Emerald Way, Hawthorn Road, Kingsway (9-65 & 38-68), Maple Road, Neville Close, Queensway, Queensway Trading Estate, Sapphire Drive, Southlea Avenue, Southlea Close, Tachbrook Road, The Approach.
WAC	Station B Brunswick Healthy Living Centre 98-100 Shrubland Street Royal Leamington Spa	Brunswick Street (38-60 evens), Charles Gardner Road, Charlotte Street, Christine Ledger Square, Claremont road, Clemens Street (evens), Frances Havergal Close, Gas Street, High Street, Priory Street, Ranelagh Terrace, Shrubland Street, St Georges Road, St Johns Road, Tachbrook Road, Wise Terrace.
WAD	Station B St John the Baptist Church Hall Tachbrook Street Royal Leamington Spa	Bonniksen Close, Brakesmead, Brunswick Street (68-118 evens), Conifer Grove, Culworth Close, Ginkgo Walk, Hitchman Mews, Hitchman Road, Lockeed Close, Richards Grove, Silver Birch Grove, Spruce Grove, St Helens Road, Tachbrook Road, Tachbrook Street, Windmill Road, Wych Elm Drive.
WAE	Station A Brunswick Healthy Living Centre 98-100 Shrubland Street Royal Leamington Spa	Aylesford Street, Brunswick Street (3-87 odds), Clemens Street (odds), Court Street, Eagle Street, East Grove, Grove Place, Llewellyn Road, Ranelagh Street, Shrubland Street, Tachbrook Street, Tower Street, The Close.
WAF	Station A St John the Baptist Church Hall Tachbrook Street Royal Leamington Spa	Alexandra Road, Brunswick Street (89-119 odds), Grosvenor Road, Northway, Offa Road, Prospect Road, Scott Road, Waverley Road.
WAG	Whitnash Nursery School Nursery Lane Royal Leamington Spa	Arden Close, Bourton Drive, Brunswick Street (123-247 odds), Haseley Close, Henley Road, Lawford Road, Nursery Lane, Redland Road, Southway, St Margaret's Road, Staunton Road, Stretton Crescent.

LEAMINGTON CLARENDON WARD – (current electorate 3748)

Polling District Letters	Polling Place	Roads within polling district
WBA	Station A Holy Trinity Parish Hall Trinity Street Royal Leamington Spa	Arlington Avenue (1-3 & 4-8), Beauchamp Avenue, Beauchamp Road, Binswood Avenue (evens), Binswood Street, Chandos Street, Clarendon Avenue, Clarendon Place, Clarendon Square (3-44), Clarendon Street (2- 38 evens), Guy Place East, Guy Place West, Guy Street, Hall Road, Kenilworth Road (1-11 & 2-8), Morrell Street, Morton Street, Oxford Place, Oxford Street, Parade, Tavistock Street, Trinity Street.
WBB	Station A St Paul's Church Hall Leicester Street Royal Leamington Spa	Campion Road (1-53 odds), Clarendon Street, Hazel Close, Hill Street, Hurley Close, Jasmine Grove, Kiln Close, Leicester Street, Lillington Road (2-16 evens), Lower Villiers Street, Norfolk Street, North Villiers Street, Pleasant Way, Sheepcote Close, Suffolk Street, Upper Hill Street, Villiers Street, Waller Street.
WBC	Station B Holy Trinity Parish Hall Trinity Street Royal Leamington Spa	Adelaide Road (odds), Augusta Place, Bedford Street, Clarendon Street (50-80 evens), Dale Street (odds), Dormer Place, John Street, Kenilworth Street, Livery Street, Parade, Park Street, Portland Place East, Portland Street, Regent Grove, Regent Street, Satchwell Walk, Warwick Street, Clarence Terrace, Windsor Place, Windsor Street.
WBD	Station B St Paul's Church Hall Leicester Street Royal Leamington Spa	Clarendon Street (41-105 odds), Cross Street, Euston Place, Holy Walk, Kennedy Square, Lansdowne Road, Lansdowne Street, Newbold Place, Newbold Street, Newbold Terrace, Rosefield Street, Swan Street, Willes Road, William Street, Wood Street.
WBE	St Paul's C of E Primary School Upper Holly Walk Royal Leamington Spa	Black Lane, Campion Terrace, Comyn Street, Duke Street, Earl Street, Eastfield Road, Fernhill Drive, Hampton Grove, Holly Street, King Street, Lansdowne Circus, Newbold Terrace East, Princes Street, Purcell Close, Queen street, St Paul's Square, Upper Holly Walk, Vincent Street, Willes Road.

LEAMINGTON CROWN WARD – (current electorate 3770)

Polling District Letters	Polling Place	Roads within polling district
WCA	Lillington Nursery School Grange Road Royal Leamington Spa	Bentley Close, Cosford Close, Cromer Road, Crown Way, Cubbington Road (48-172 evens), Grange Road, Gresham Avenue, Gresham Place, Newnham Road, Pound Lane, Rawlinson Road, Taylor Avenue, The Greenways, Wallsgrove Close, Walnut Drive, Valley Road.
WCB	Station A Lillington Youth Centre Mason Avenue Royal Leamington Spa	Briar Close, Buckley Road, Compton Close, Dudley Green, East Dene, Elton Close, Haddon Road, Marston Close, Robbins Way, Wellington Road.
WCC	Station B Lillington Youth Centre Mason Avenue Royal Leamington Spa	Ashton Court, Barnard Close, Buckley Road, Burbury Close, Clare Close, Denby Close, Eden Court, Fell Grove, Hanworth Close, Langdale Close, Mason Avenue, Newland Road, Southorn Court, Sudbury Close, The Crest, Thursfield Road, Wackrill Drive, Winston Crescent.
WCD	Lillington RC Church Valley Road Royal Leamington Spa	Aintree Drive, Ascot Ride, Charnwood Way, Cheviot Rise, Cubbington Road (174-274 evens), Cumberland Crescent, Delamere Way, Elan Close, Epping Way, Epsom Road, Exmoor Drive, Kempton Crescent, Leighton Close, Meadow Close, Oakridge Road, Parklands Avenue, Redcar Close, Sandown Close, Severn Close, Sherwood Walk, Valley Road, Wye Close.

LEAMINGTON MANOR WARD - (current electorate 6226)

Polling District Letters	Polling Place	Roads within polling district
WDA	Station A The Club House Leamington Cricket Ground Arlington Avenue Royal Leamington Spa	Arlington Avenue (21-39 & 16-42), Barley Court, Bell Court, Binswood Avenue (odds), College Drive, Denville Road, Dereham Court, Enright Close, Finings Court, Kenilworth Road (13-45 & 12-38), Lillington Avenue, Lillington Road (3-35 odds), Northumberland Road, Onslow Croft, Spilsbury Close, Strachey Avenue, The Maltings.
WDB	Community & Dining Room Acorn Court Stockton Grove Off Loxley Way/Whitacre Road Royal Leamington Spa	Berenska Drive, Brownlow Street, Campion Green, Campion Road (2-32 evens), Chestnut Road, Cubbington Road (20-46 evens), Granville Street, Heemsede Lane, Hellidon Close, Keir Close, Lillington Road (18-48 evens), Loxley Way, Mulberry Close, Napton Drive, Oak Tree Close, Payne Close, Pound Lane, Robinia Close, Rosewood Crescent, Shuckburgh Grove, Stockton Grove, Waller Street, Wathen Road, Whitacre Road, Whitethorn Drive.
WDC	Station B The Club House Leamington Cricket Ground Arlington Avenue Royal Leamington Spa	Aldwick Close, Almond Avenue, Arbury Close, Barwell Close, Belmont Drive, Bordesley Court, Bowers Croft, Burman Close, Cloister Crofts, Cloister Way (1-25 & 2-16), Crowden Drive, Elm Bank Close, Garway Close, John Cullis Gardens, Kenilworth Road (47-55 & 40-68), Lillington Road (39-107 & 78-172), Northumberland Road, Park Road, Sandy Lane, Warren Road, Woodcote Road.
WDD	Station A The Octagon St Mary Magdalene Vicarage Road Royal Leamington Spa	Cameron Close, Cedar Close, Church Lane, Cubbington Road (1-87 odds), Elm Road, Farm Road, Hill Close, Inglewood Close, Leicester Lane (6-68 evens), Lillington Close, Lime Avenue, Manor Road, Montrose Avenue (1-79 & 2-66), Vicarage Road.
WDE	Station B The Octagon St Mary Magdalene Vicarage Road Royal Leamington Spa	Avondale Road, Burns Road, Cubbington Road (89- 175 odds), Hadrian Close, Highland Road, Keith Road, Kinross Road (5-107 & 2-86), Lonsdale Road, Melton Road, The Holt.
WDF	Station A Telford Junior School Telford Avenue Royal Leamington Spa	Braemar Road, Crawford Close, Cubbington Road (179-203 odds), Helmsdale Road, Kelvin Road (1-55 & 2-46), Kinross Road (109-187 & 88-138), Leicester Lane (70-92 evens), Montrose Avenue (81-107 & 68-84), South View Road, St Andrews Road, Stirling Avenue, Telford Avenue.

LEAMINGTON MILVERTON WARD – (current electorate 6242)

Polling District	Polling Place	Roads within polling district
Letters	-	
WEA	Station A Brookhurst Primary School Ullswater Avenue Royal Leamington Spa	Acacia Road, Albert Street, Bankfield Drive, Birchway Close, Blandford Road, Cornwall Place, Edward Street, Fairlawn Close, Goodfellow Street, Highcroft Crescent, Highfield Terrace, Kingland Drive, Old Milverton Road, Quarry Street, Ridgewood Close, Riversleigh Road, Rock Mill Lane, Rugby Road, St Albans Close, Saxon Meadows, St James Meadow Road, Stephenson Close, Terry Avenue, The Spinney, Winslow Close.
WEB	Station B Brookhurst Primary School Ullswater Avenue Royal Leamington Spa	Astley Close, Avonlea Rise, Borrowdale Drive, Cockermouth Close, Colbourne Grove, Coniston Road, David Close, Derwent Close, Eaton Close, Ennerdale Close, Guys Cliffe Avenue (1-55 & 2-158), Hopton Crofts (1-3 & 2-38), Kendal Avenue, Keswick Green, Lamintone Drive, Mosspaul Close, Overall Grove, Penrith Close, Ravensdale Avenue, Risdale Close, The Fairways, Troutbeck Avenue, Ullswater Avenue, Wasdale Close.
WEC	Station B St Marks Church Hall St Marks Road Royal Leamington Spa	Bamburgh Grove, Beverley Road, Cliffe Road, Fairhurst Drive, Freemans Close, Fryer Avenue, Gaveston Road, Greatheed Road, Loveday Drive, Northumberland Road, Rugby Road, St Marks Mews, St Marks Road, Vernon Close, Wheathill Close.
WED	Station A St Marks Church Hall St Marks Road Royal Leamington Spa	Albany Terrace, Arley Mews, Beauchamp Hill, Binswood Street, Clarendon Crescent, Clarendon Place (6-10 evens), Clarendon Square (11-22), Gulistan Road, Guys Cliffe Road, Heath Terrace, Milverton Crescent, Milverton Crescent West, Rugby Road, Strathearn Road, Union Road, Upper Grove Street, Warwick Place, Warwick Street, Warwick Terrace.
WEE	The Pavilion Edmondscote Athletic Track, River Close, off Edmondscote Road Royal Leamington Spa	Conway Road, Copps Road, Cross Street, Edmondscote Road, Gunnery Terrace, Guys Cliffe Road, Hyde Place, Knightcote Drive, Mews Road, Mill House Close, Mill House Drive, Mill House Terrace, Oswald Road, Percy Terrace, Princes Drive, River Close, Rugby Road, Warwick New Road, Warwick Place, Westgrove Terrace, Wilhelmina Close.
WEF	Methodist Church Community Room Dale Street Royal Leamington Spa	Abbotts Street, Adelaide Road (1-21 & 2-28), Archery Road, Avenue Road, Bath Place, Bath Street (evens), Church Hill, Dale Street (evens) Grove Street, Lower Avenue, Milverton Hill, Milverton Terrace, New Brook Street, Park Drive, Portland Place West, Princes Drive, Regent Street, Somers Place, Spencer Street, Spencer Yard, Victoria Road, Victoria Street, Victoria Place, Warwick Place, Warwick Street, Woodbine Street, York Road.

LEAMINGTON WILLES WARD – (current electorate 6150)

Polling District Letters	Polling Place	Roads within polling district
WFA	Station A Radford Road Church Rear Church Hall Radford Road Royal Leamington Spa	Church Terrace, Church Walk, Clinton Street, Farley Street, Gloucester Street, Gordon Street, Leam Terrace (5-47 & 2-66), Mill Road, Mill Street, New Street, Priory Terrace, Regent Street, Russell Terrace.
WFB	Station B Radford Road Church Rear Church Hall Radford Road Royal Leamington Spa	Bath Street (odds), Baxter Court, Camberwell Terrace, Chapel Street, Church Street, Davidson Avenue, Farley Street, Forfield Place, George Street, Gundry Close, High Street (21-51 & 16-52), Packington Place, Plymouth Place, Radford Road, Regent Place, Rotherfield Close, Russell Terrace, Styles Close, Warneford Mews, Willes Road.
WFC	Station A St Mary's Church Centre St Mary's Road Royal Leamington Spa	Beaconsfield Street, Beaconsfield Street West, Cowdray Close, Glebe Place, Gullimans Way, Innage Close, Leam Street, Leam Terrace (49-217 & 68-194), Lower Leam Street, Northcote Street, Radford Road, St Mary's Road, Sydenham Drive, Willes Road, Willes Terrace.
WFD	Station B St Mary's Church Centre St Mary's Road Royal Leamington Spa	Chesham Street, Clapham Square, Clapham Street, Clapham Terrace, Eastnor Grove, Radford Road, Rushmore Street, Rushmore Terrace, St Mary's Crescent, St Mary's Road, St Mary's Terrace, Waterloo Street, Willes Road.
WFE	Station A SYDNI Centre Cottage Square Off Marloes Walk Royal Leamington Spa	Amroth Mews, Barton Crescent, Bladon Walk, Coningsby Close, Cottage Close, Cottage Square, Crabtree Grove, Curzon Grove, Fallow Hill, Freshwater Grove, Grenfell Close, Hornbeam Grove, Joan's Close, Marloes Walk, Newbury Close, Newgale Walk, Padmore Court, Solway Close, St Brides Close, St Govan's Close, Sydenham Drive, Weston Close.
WFF	Station B SYDNI Centre Cottage Square Off Marloes Walk Royal Leamington Spa	Blakelands Avenue, Broadhaven Close, Danesbury Crescent, Eastwood Close, Endsleigh Gardens, Fellmore Grove, Foxdale Walk, Gainsborough Drive, Harvest Hill Close, Lydstep Grove, Lynwood Walk, Marcroft Place, Mayfield Close, Pennystone close, Portway Close, Radbrook Way, Randolph Close, Rinill Grove, Ryland Close, Springwell Road, St Ann's Close, St David's Close, Stidfall Grove, Stoneway Grove, Sydenham Drive, Vermont Grove, Watersfield Gardens, Wentworth Road.

WFG	Station A Sydenham Community Centre Chesterton Drive Royal Leamington Spa	Alderton Mews, Bancroft, Bisset Crescent, Blenheim Crescent, Burford Mews, Calder Walk (2-44 evens), Charlbury Mews, Chesterton Drive (201-215 odds), Cobden Avenue, Corston Mews, Craig Close, Cundall Close, Elliston Grove, Emmott Drive, Hidcote Close, Kilby Grove, Kingston Mews, Lambourn Crescent, Mathecroft, Moncrieff Drive, Newdigate, Purton Mews, Standlake Mews, Swain Crofts, Sydenham Drive, Waverton Mews, Wilnecote Grove.
WFH	Station B Sydenham Community Centre Chesterton Drive Royal Leamington Spa	Baddesley Grove, Beaulieu Park, Calder Walk (1-39 odds), Charlecote Gardens, Chatsworth Gardens, Coughton Drive, Longleat Grove, Marlborough Drive, Packwood Close, Woburn Close.
WFHA (register to be amalgamat ed with WFH from next County Council elections 2009)	Station B Sydenham Community Centre Chesterton Drive Royal Leamington Spa	Badgers Retreat, Beavers Brook Close, Chesterton Drive (217-231 odds), Hastang Fields, Horsepool Hollow, Kingfishers Reach, Littleworth Croft, Mill Pond Meadows, Otters Rest, Parish End, Pebble Island Way, Redhill Furrows, St Fremund Way, Withy Bank.

LEEK WOOTTON WARD – (current electorate 1943)

Polling District Letters	Polling Place	Roads within polling district
WTA	Village Hall Warwick Road Leek Wootton	The parish of Leek Wootton
WTB	The Beausale Club School Lane Beausale	The parish of Beausale, Haseley, Honiley and Wroxall
WTC	Village Hall Shrewley	The parish of Shrewley

RADFORD SEMELE WARD – (current electorate 1886)

Polling District Letters	Polling Place	Roads within polling district
WVA	Parish Church Room Hunningham	The parish of Hunningham
WVB	Village Hall Offchurch	The parish of Offchurch
WVC	Community Hall Lewis Road Radford Semele	The parish of Radford Semele

WARWICK NORTH WARD – (current electorate 6264)

Polling District Letters	Polling Place	Roads within polling district
WGA	Station A Woodloes Infant School Deansway Warwick	Barnack Drive, Birmingham Road, Boswell Grove, Chanders Road, Corbison Close, Crane Close, Deansway (60-163), Exham Close, Giffard Way, Gleeson Drive, Handley Grove, Harmer Close, Hathaway Drive (19-39 & 24-32), Hughes Close, Knoll Drive, Lacell Close, Lee Close, Lincoln Close, Lowes Avenue, Lynton Close, Moore Close, Norton Drive, Primrose Hill, Raynsford Walk, Ridgeley Close, Stanton Walk, The Cape, Twycross Walk, Warner Close, Wedgnock Lane.
WGB	Station B Woodloes Infant School Deansway Warwick	Beaufell Close, Berwick Close, Congreve Close, Cooke Close, Cowper Close, Deansway (2-18 evens), Dennett Close, Drayton Court, Dwarris Walk, Eborall Close, Eliot Close, Guys Cliffe, Hathaway Drive (1-17 & 2-22), Hicks Close, Hind Close, Inchford Avenue, Kirby Avenue, Kites Close, Linden Close, Nicholson Close, Primrose Hill, Richardson Close, Sheldon Grove, Sutherland Close, Wade Grove, Weale Grove, Welsh Close, Westcliffe Drive, Wise Grove, Woodloes Avenue North, Woodloes Lane, Yardley Close.
WGC	Woodloes Park Community Centre Deansway Warwick	Addingham Close, Arncliffe Way, Austwick Close, Brese Avenue, Buckden Close, Burges Grove, Edmondes Close, Gisburn Close, Grassington Avenue, Greenway, Hayle Avenue, Hebden Avenue, Hetton Close, Huddisdon Close, Kettlewell Close, Kildwick Way, Kilnsey Grove, Langcliffe Avenue, Leyburn Close, Makepeace Avenue, Malham Road, Neville Grove, Newsholme Close, Phillippes Road, Rylstone Way, Smythe Grove, Thornton Close, Townesend Close, Walford Grove, Watson Close, Woodloes Avenue South.
WGD	Station A The Gap 39 Oakwood Grove Warwick	All Saints Road (45-79 & 36-122), Almond Grove, Arden Close, Blacklow Road, Cedar Grove, Charles Street (27-71 & 26-54), Dale Close, George Road, Guys Cliffe, Larch Grove, Lilac Grove, Montague Road, Nelson Avenue, Spinney Hill, The Ridgeway.
WGE	Station B The Gap 39 Oakwood Grove Warwick	Beech Grove, Chesford Crescent, Greville Road (119-201 & 128-218), Laburnum Grove, Maple Grove, Millbank, Oakwood Grove, Pattens Road, Sycamore Grove, The Chantry.
WGF	Emscote Infant School All Saints Road Warwick	All Saints Road (1-43 & 2-34), Austin Edward Drive, Beauchamp Road, Burbury Court, Dickins Road, Emscote Road (105-151 odds), Greville Road (7-117 & 2-116), Hill Street, Humphris Street, Marsham Close, Vicarage Field, Whittington Close.

WARWICK SOUTH WARD – (current electorate 7292)

Polling District Letters	Polling Place	Roads within polling district
WHA	St Mary's Social Centre West Street Warwick	Castle Close, Castle Lane (19-21& 26-38), Foxes Way, Leyfields Crescent, Lodge Crescent, Stratford Road, Stuart Close, Temple Grove, West Street.
WHB	Castle Hill Baptist church Castle Hill Warwick	Archery Fields, Back Lane, Banbury Road, Bridge End, Castle Hill, Castle Lane (1-15 & 2-24), Castle Street, Gallows Hill, Gerrard Street, High Street (odds), Jury Street (6-16 evens), Leycester Place, Mill Street, Smith Street, St Johns, St Johns Court, St Nicholas Church Street, St Nicholas Park, Weston Close.
WHC	Station A Warwick Youth Centre 71 Coten End Warwick	Bartlett Close, Beech Cliffe, Broad Street, Cherry Street, Coten End, Coventry Road (16-148 evens), Guy Street, Guys Cliffe Terrace, Nelson Lane, Station Avenue.
WHCA	Station B Warwick Youth Centre 71 Coten End Warwick	Basant Close, Beaurevoir Way, Birch End, Campriano Drive, Charles Street (1-21 & 4), Cliffe Way, Emscote Road (1-77 odds), Fields Court, Fosberry Close, Guys Close, Highland Close, Ilex Court, Marne Close, Wharf Street.
WHD	Community Centre Pickard Street Warwick	Avon Street, Bridge Street, Emscote Road (2-230 evens), Field Close, Fleur-de-Lys Court, Frances Avenue, Grange Close, Kemp Close, Maynard Avenue, Meadow Road, Mercia Way, Pickard Street, Rich Close, William Tarver Close.
WHE	Annex 2 Meeting Room WCC Social Services Dept Myton Park Training Centre Myton Lane Warwick	Ashley Crescent, Bennett Drive, Croft Close, Dodd Avenue, Greaves Close, Griffin Road, Holioake Drive, Leam Road, Moore Walk, Myton Crofts, Myton Lane, Myton Road (evens), Olympus Avenue, Ward Grove.
WHF	The Foyer Bridge House Theatre Warwick School Myton Road Warwick	Aragon Drive, Banbury Road, Boleyn Close, Cleeves Avenue, Fieldhead Lane, Howard Walk, Myton Crescent, Myton Gardens, Myton Road (odds), Parr Close, Queensway, Saumur Way, Seymour Grove, The Malins, The Moorings.
WHG	Station A The Main Hall Warwick Gates Community Centre Cressida Close Warwick	Bagot Way, Balthazar Close, Banquo Approach (1-9 & 2-12), Bushy End, Chatillon Close, Cleopatra Grove, Coriolanus Square, Costard Avenue, Cymbeline Way, Desdemonia Avenue, Donalbain Close (1-11 & 2-8), Hermione Close, Jack Cade Way, Juliet Drive (1-5 & 2-10), Ophelia Drive, Othello Avenue, Parolles Close, Pericles Close, Phebe Close, Poins Close, Portia Way, Sir Toby Belch Drive.

WHGA (register to be amalgamat ed with WHG from next County Council elections 2009)	Station A The Main Hall Warwick Gates Community Centre Cressida Close Warwick	Donalbain Close (10-12 evens)and Juliet Drive (7-9 & 12)
WHH	Station B The Main Hall Warwick Gates Community Centre Cressida Close Warwick	Caliban Mews, Capulet Drive, Cassandra Grove, Cordelia Green, Cranmer Grove, Earl Rivers Avenue, Falstaff Grove, Faulconbridge Way, Gadshill, Glendower Approach, Heathcote, Heathcote Park (Harbury Lane), Imogen Gardens, Jourdain Park, Lady Grey Avenue, Lear Grove, Leontes Meadows, Mark Antony Drive, Oberon Close, Ophelia Drive, Othello Avenue, Plantagenet Park, Prospero Drive, Romeo Arbour, Tamora Close, Timon View, Tressel Croft, Tybalt Close.

WARWICK WEST WARD – (current electorate 7152)

Polling District Letters	Polling Place	Roads within polling district
WJA	Community Centre Saltisford Gardens Warwick	Antelope Gardens, Birmingham Road (101-155 & 158), Eastley Crescent, Goode Close, Lyster Close, Saltisford Gardens, St Christopher's Close, St Mary's Close, St Michael Road, Warmington Grove, Wilmhurst Road.
WJB	Station B Nursery Classroom St Mary Immaculate Catholic Primary School Wathen Road Warwick	Cape Road (51-181 & 50-60)), Chandley Wharf, Deerpark Drive, Hankinson Road, Hanworth Road, Landor Road, Lower Cape, Millers Road (2-74 evens), Newburgh Crescent, Oken Road, Peel Road, Sir Thomas White Close, Tatnall Grove, Upper Cape, Wedgnock Green.
MJC	Meeting Room Church of Jesus Christ of Latter Day Saints Birmingham Road Warwick	Albert Street, Ansell Way, Birchmeadow Close, Cape Road (1-31 & 22-28), Edward Street, Eyffler Close, Lammas Walk, Mallory Drive, Northgate, Parkes Street, Romani Close, Saltisford, Spring Pool, Turberville Place, Victoria Mews, Victoria Street, Wallwin Place, Wavytree Close.
WJD	Station A Nursery Classroom St Mary Immaculate Catholic Primary School Wathen Road Warwick	Arundel Close, Cornwall Close, Coventry Road (21-41 odds), Crossfields Road, Gaveston Close, Green Lane, Guys Cross Park Road, Lakin Court, Lakin Road, Lyttelton Road, Millers Road (76-124 evens), Mulberry Drive, Packmore Street, Paradise Street, Peel Road, Pembroke Close, Percy Road, Piers Close, Remburn Gardens, Roe Close, Rowan Drive, Sharpe Close, Trueman Close, Vine Lane, Wathen Road, Woodcote Road, Woodville Road.
WJE	Northgate Church Hall Barrack Street Warwick	Barrack Street, Brook Street, Chapel Street, Church Street, Coventry Road, Cross Street, High Street (evens), Jury Street (3-37 odds), Market Place, Market Street, New Street, Priory Road, Puckerings Lane, Smith Street, St Johns, Swan Street, The Butts, The Paddocks, Yeomanry Close,.
WJF	Church Hall Rear of St Paul's Church Friars Street Warwick	Abbots Way, Bowling Green Street, Bread and Meat Close, Charter Approach, Cocksparrow Street, Commainge Close, Crompton Street, Friars Street, Hampton Street, Linen Street, Monks Way, Noble Close, Queens Square, St Laurence Avenue, Stand Street, Stratford Road, Theatre Street, West End Court, West Street, Westgate Close, Woodhouse Street.

WJG	Station A Warwick Corps of Drums Westend Centre Hampton Road Warwick	Browning Avenue, Burns Avenue, Byron Avenue, Earls Meadow, Goldsmith Avenue, Hampton Road (34-74), Kipling Avenue, Longbridge, Longfellow Avenue, Masefield Avenue, Milton Avenue, Shakespeare Avenue, Shelly Avenue, Stratford Road, Tennyson Avenue, The Peacocks, Wordsworth Avenue.
WJH	Station B Warwick Corps of Drums Westend Centre Hampton Road Warwick	Alder Meadow, Blackbades Boulevard, Bromhurst Way, Claypitts Boulevard, Dey Croft, Dovehouse Close, Farzens Avenue, Freers Mews, Glover Close, Goggbridge Lane, Hampton Road, Hardwick Field Lane, Jacombe Close, Lee Meadowe, Leylands Ways, Lovell Field Close, Lynnon Field, Mander Grove, Meakins Close, Morecroft Drive, Narrow Hall Meadow, Pasture Way, Penney Lane, Price Close East, Price Close West, Purser Drive, Pyree Square, Robins Grove, Rogers Way, Shreres Dyche, Swan Meadow, The Furr Marsh, The Marish, Torres Close, Turner Close, Verden Avenue, Wake Grove, Young Close.

WHITNASH WARD – (current electorate 6479)

Polling District Letters	Polling Place	Roads within polling district
WXA	Station B Methodist Church Hall Murcott Road East Whitnash	Brunswick Street (120-190 evens), Church Close, Church Lane, Greenhill Road, Greville Smith Avenue, Langley Road, Masters Road, Palmer Road, Spa View, Whitnash Road.
WXB	Station A New Hall Sports and Social Club Heathcote Road Whitnash	Acre Close, Albert Bean Close, Allibone Close, Antony Gardner Crescent, Clarkson Drive, Cobham Green, Cox's Orchard, Dobson Lane, Frances Gibbs Gardens, Goldacre Close, Heathcote Road (60-168 evens), Justice Close, Montgomery Road, Osborne Court, Tachbrook Road, Weilerswist Road.
WXBA	Station B New Hall Sports and Social Club Heathcote Road Whitnash	Barn Close, Canon Young Road, Curran Close, Golf Lane (1-15 odds), Green Close, Halls Close, Heathcote Road (2-58 evens), Home Farm Crescent, Rectory Close, Whitnash Road.
WXC	Station A Methodist Church Hall Murcott Road East Whitnash	Avon Road, Coppice Road (2-20 evens), Franklin Road, Gleave Road, Heathcote Road (1-141 odds), Lammas Croft, Landor Road (1-33 & 2-52), Mollington Road, Moorhill Road (37-89 odds), Murcott Road East (25-59 & 38-90), Murcott Road West, South Terrace, Summerton Road, Witmore Road.
WXD	St Josephs Catholic Primary School Rowley Road Whitnash	Ashford Gardens, Ashford Road, Chandlers Road, Coppice Road (128-142 evens), Landor Road (35-153 & 54-184), Moorhill Road (3-35 & 2-30), Rowley Road, St Catherine's Crescent, Tachbrook Road, Washbourne Road.
WXDA	Station C The Main Hall Warwick Gates Community Centre Cressida Close Warwick	Bandquo Approach (11-57 & 14-70), Eglamour Way (5-21 &12-22), Juliet Drive (11-41 & 14-34), Medley Grove, Patience Grove, Peto Grove, Priam Circus, Rambures Close, Sir Toby Belch Drive, Troilus Court.
WXDB (register to be amalgamated with WXDA from next County Council elections 2009)	Station C The Main Hall Warwick Gates Community Centre Cressida Close Warwick	Eglamour Way (1-3 & 2-10)

WXDC (register to be amalgamated with WXDA from next County Council elections 2009)	Station C The Main Hall Warwick Gates Community Centre Cressida Close Warwick	Banquo Approach (59-67 & 72-84), Othello Avenue, Tachbrook Road.
WXE	Station A Briar Hill Infant School Coppice Road Whitnash	Anderson Drive, Armstrong Close, Barford Approach, Bolyfant Crescent, Cherry Blossom Grove, Coppice Road (97-111 & 22-126), Crutchley Way, Cypress Lane, Dawson Close, Erica Drive, Evans Grove, Firethorn Crescent, Fosse Way, Harbury Lane, Holyoke Grove, Hughes Close, Moorhill Road (32-62 evens), Morse Road, Normanby Meadows, Rideswell Grove, Rowley Road, Verdun Close, Villebon Way, Woodward Close.
WXF	Station B Briar Hill Infant School Coppice Road Whitnash	Box Close, Brunel Close, Burrows Close, Coppice Road (1-95 odds), Cotterill's Close, Fieldgate Lane, Fosseway, Golf Lane (29-105 & 28-64), Harrow Road, Holmes Road, Kirton Close, Laburnum Drive, Markham Drive, Morris Drive, Mullard Drive, Murcott Road East (94-114 evens), The Seekings, Whitnash Road, Willow Close.

RUGBY AND KENILWORTH CONSTITUENCY

KENILWORTH ABBEY WARD – (current electorate 5891)

Polling District Letters	Polling Place	Roads within polling district
WKA	Station A Priors Field Primary School Hall Clinton Lane Kenilworth	Avenue Road, Beehive Hill (19-59 & 18-20), Birmingham Road, Chase Lane, Clinton Avenue, Clinton Lane, Cobbs Road, De Montfort Road, Denton Close, Grange Avenue, Priorsfield Road, Purlieu Lane, Quarry Road, Red Lane, Woodcote Avenue.
WKB	Village Hall Hodgetts Lane Burton Green	Bockendon Road, Crackley Lane, Cromwell Lane (Burton Green), Cromwell Lane (Tile Hill), Featherbed Lane, Hob Lane, Hodgetts Lane, Hollis Lane, Red Lane, Westwood Heath Road.
WKC	Station B Priors Field Primary School Hall Clinton Lane Kenilworth	Amherst Road, Beehive Hill (1-5 & 2), Berkeley Road, Bridge Street, Bromely Close, Castle Green, Castle Hill, Elizabeth Way, Elmbank Road, Fancott Drive, Fernhill Close, Fieldgate Lawn, Fieldgate Lane, Gloster Drive, High Street, Hollis Lane, Malthouse Lane, Manor Road (evens), Monmouth Close, New Street, Pears Close, Rose Croft, Upper Spring Lane.
WKD	Fire Station School Lane Kenilworth	Albion Street, Arthur Street, Henry Street, Herberts Lane, Hyde Road, Lawrence Gardens, Park Hill, Park Road, Pepper Lane Mews, Priory Road, Richards Close, Rosemary Hill, School Lane, Spring Lane, The Blundells, Upper Rosemary Hill.
WKE	Methodist Church Hall Priory Road Kenilworth	Abbey End, Abbey Hill, Bertie Road, Cherry Way, Harger Court, Offa Drive, Priory Croft, Priory Road, Reeve Drive, Southbank Road, Station Road, The Square, Warwick Road, Waverley Road, Whateleys Drive.
WKF	The Library (Rear Entrance) Smalley Place Kenilworth	Abbey End, Angless Way, Barrow Road, Barrowfield Lane, Borrowell Lane, Brookside Avenue, Castle Grove, Castle Road, Forrest Road, Greville Road, Grounds Farm Lane, Highfield Close, Margetts Close, Mercia Avenue, Queens Road, Randall Road, St Mary's Court, Talisman Close, The Square, Warwick Road.

KENILWORTH PARK HILL WARD – (current electorate 6407)

Polling District Letters	Polling Place	Roads within polling district
WLA	Station B St Barnabas Church Albion Street Kenilworth	Alpine Court, Arborfields Close, Common Lane, Convent Close, Coventry Road, Crackley Lane, Fennyland Lane, Hawkesworth Drive, Highland Road, Hollis Lane, Inchbrook Road, Leagh Close, Littleton Close, Lower Ladies Hills, Manor Road (odds), Moss Grove, Southfield Drive, Tainters Hill, Upper Ladyes Hill, Upper Spring Lane, Water Tower Lane, Windmill Close, Woodland Road.
WLB	Station A St Barnabas Church Albion Street Kenilworth	Admiral Gardens, Best Avenue, Broomybank, Butler Close (5-9 & 2-10), Churchhill Avenue, Clifden Grove, Dalehouse Lane (1-73 & 2-56), Finham Crescent, Finham Road, Forge Road, Garlick Drive, Glendale Avenue, Greensward Close, Knowle Hill (evens), Lulworth Park, Mill End, Millbank Mews, Northvale Close, Park Road, Redfern Avenue, Stoneleigh Avenue, Stoneleigh road, Taylor Close, The Close, The Deerleap, Watling Road, Whitehead Drive, Woodmill Meadow.
WLBA (register to be amalgamat ed with WLB from next County Council elections 2009)	Station A St Barnabas Church Albion Street Kenilworth	Butler Close (1-3 odds) and Whitehead Drive.
WLC	Station B The Music Rooms Kenilworth School & Sports College Upper School Leyes Lane Kenilworth	Angus Close, Bodnant Way, Chatsworth Grove, Crewe Lane, Denewood Way, Fairway Rise, Framlingham Grove, Frythe Close, Glasshouse Lane, Harlech Road, Hidcote Road, Hodnet Close, Ilam Park, Jacox Crescent, Kew Close, Knowle Hill (odds), Leyes Lane (13-59 odds), Nason Grove, Park Hill, Pencraig Close, Penrhyn Close, Powis Grove, Raglan Grove, Rawnsley Drive, Saville Grove, Sturley Close, Thirlestane Close, Tisdale Rise, Trentham Gardens, Westonbirt Close, Wisley Grove.
WLD	Kenilworth Rugby Club (Rear of Club House) Glasshouse Lane Kenilworth	Arbour Close, Ashow Close, Barford road, Canterbury Close, Dencer Drive (55-59 & 60), Draper Close, Glasshouse Lane (1-111 & 2-54), Heyville Croft, Kineton Road, Knightlow Close, Mayfield Drive, Mountbatten Avenue, Newfield Avenue, Orchard Lane, Warton Close, Windy Arbour.

WLE	Station A The Music Rooms Kenilworth School & Sports College Upper School Leyes Lane Kenilworth	Arlidge Crescent, Asplen Court, Camelot Grove, Cashmore Road, Casita Grove, Clements Close, Cornhill Grove, Courthouse Croft, Dencer Drive (1-53 & 2-56), Dunvegan Close, Edwards Grove, Inveraray Close, Jackson Grove, Leyes Lane (40-70 evens), Lindisfarne Drive, Potts Close, Riley Close, Seekings Drive, Stansfield Grove, Tappinger Grove, Tennyson Close, The Wardens, Tintagel Grove, Turton Way, Wilson Grove, Windy Arbour,
WLF	Station C The Music Rooms Kenilworth School & Sports College Upper School Leyes Lane Kenilworth	Wordsworth Drive. Adcock Drive, Allitt Grove, Ashdene Gardens, Beech Drive, Cherry Orchard, Field Close, Harbourne Close, Holmewood Close, Keeling Road, Leyes Lane (1-11 & 4-6), Park Close, Park Hill, Parkfield Drive, Piper's Lane, Tulip Tree Avenue, Villiers Road, Webster Avenue, Whitemoor Road, Willow Meer, Wincote Close.

KENILWORTH ST JOHNS WARD – (current electorate 5899)

Polling District Letters	Polling Place	Roads within polling district
WMA	Castle Farm Leisure Centre Fishponds Road Kenilworth	Archer Road, Avon Road, Caesar Road, Farm Road, Fishponds Road, John O'Gaunt Road, Lunn Avenue, Oaks Road, Percy Crescent, Percy Road, Rounds Hill, Scott Road, Siddeley Avenue, St Nicholas Avenue, The Mews, Willoughby Avenue.
WMB	St Francis of Assisi Roman Catholic Parish Hall Warwick Road Kenilworth	Clarendon Road, Clarkes Avenue, Drew Crescent, Faircroft, Glebe Crescent, Grafton Close, John Nash Square, Lockhart Close, Moorlands Avenue, Priory Road, Queens Close, Queens Road, Regency Drive, St Johns Avenue, St Johns Street, Station Road, Warwick Road, Waverley Road, Whites Row.
WMC	Station A St Johns Parish Hall (Large Hall) Warwick Road Kenilworth	Beauchamp Road, Chestnut Avenue, Dryden Close, Dudley Road, Essex Close, Guy Road, Lancaster Place, Latimer Close, Leycester Road, Mortimer Road, Oaks Road, Roseland Road, St Nicholas Avenue, Walkers Way, Warwick Road.
WMD	Castle Sixth Form Centre Kenilworth School Rouncil Lane Kenilworth	Beechwood Croft, Farm Road (1-9 & 2-6), Gardner Way, Lindsey Crescent, Newey Drive, Rouncil Lane, Rounds Hill, Sovereign Close, Suncliffe Drive, Sunshine Close, Swift Close, Towers Close, Vicarage Gardens, Warwick Road.
WME	Thorns Community Infant School Blackthorn Road Kenilworth	Ash Drive, Ashfield Road, Blackthorn Road, Brooke Road, Ebourne Close, Eden Croft, Elmdene Road, Farmer Ward Road (65-129 & 50- 86), Laburnum Avenue, Lime Grove, Mayo Drive, Sunningdale Avenue.
WMF	Station B St Johns Parish Hall (Large Hall) Warwick Road Kenilworth	Arden Road, Birches Lane, Bullimore Grove, Farmer Ward Road (1-63 & 16-48), Ferndale Drive, Hermitage Way, Jordan Close, Leamington Road, Moseley Road, The Gardens, Thickthorn Close, Thickthorn Mews, Thickthorn Orchards, Thornby Avenue, Walnut Tree Close, Worcester Close.

STONELEIGH WARD – (current electorate 1534)

Polling District Letters	Polling Place	Roads within polling district
WWA	Village Hall	The parish of Ashow
	Ashow	
WWB	Village Hall	The parish of Baginton
	Frances Road	
	Baginton	
WWC	Village Hall	The parish of Stoneleigh
	Stoneleigh	-
WWD	Sports Pavilion	The following University of Warwick
	Cryfield	accommodation -
	University of Warwick	Cryfield, Gibbet Hill Road, Heronbank,
	Coventry	Hurst, Lakeside, Redfern.